
Approved DRB Meeting Minutes – April 17, 2012      page 1 of 4 

     Town of Hinesburg 
Development Review Board 

April 17th, 2012 
APPROVED 05/01/2012 

 

Members Present: Tom McGlenn, Zoë Wainer, Dennis Place, Dick Jordan, Greg Waples, Bill 

Moller. 

 

Members Absent:  Kate Myhre, Ted Bloomhardt   

 

Also Present: Peter Erb (Zoning Administrator), Freeda Powers (Recording Secretary).  Alex 

Weinhagen (Director of Planning & Zoning), arrived at 7:50pm. 

Representing applications; Co‐Developers Bart & Collin Frisbie, Andy Rowe (engineer), Brett 

Grabowski. Public present included: Marge Sharp, Gail Webb, Martha Keenan, Rodman Cory, 

Jen Hunter, Ali Merritt, Deb and Bob Blanck. 

 

Tom McGlenn chaired the meeting, which started at 7:34pm. 

 

Minutes from April 3rd, 2012 Meeting: 
Tom M MOVED to approve as amended.  Dennis P seconded the motion.  Bill M abstained 

from this vote. The motion PASSED 5‐0.  

 
Hinesburg Hillside, LLC: Revision to a final subdivision plat (PUD) Redesign Plan for Phase III of 
Thistle Hill neighborhood on the North side of Thornbush Rd.  Tax Map #: 09‐01‐01.700 

(Continued from March 6th). 

 

The applicant came back with full engineering plans, including further details on landscaping.  

Bart F (developer) showed the board plans to square off site 29 with relocated sewer lines and 

demonstrated the areas designated as “common areas” which will be owned/accessed by all 

home owners in the Thistle Hill neighborhood.  He showed plans to widen Barberry Ln by 2’ and 

to add Lilac Ln as part of the new development. 

 

Landscape plans included the addition of trees on the west side of Barberry Ln (Sargent Cherry), 

and relocating some existing trees with new additions as well along Thornbush Rd.  Plans also 

include tree planting along proposed Lilac Ln.  There are no proposed street lights. 

 

Tom M asked if the board had any questions.  Greg W, who was absent at the March 6
th
 

meeting, noted the significant changes from the originally approved plans from 2007 and 

questioned the request for such changes.  Bart F explained the reasoning (including the turned 

financial and housing markets) for the change from the previous proposal of four larger units 

slated as senior housing to the current request for 9 single family homes and 1 duplex. 

 

Bart F addressed concerns raised regarding lot 36, saying he does not feel restrictions on that 

lot are warranted.  He said the back of lot 36 is 76’ from Mechanicsville Rd and he feels that 

Condition #15 in the proposal works very effectively.  He said they can not predict the buyer or 



Approved DRB Meeting Minutes – April 17, 2012      page 2 of 4 

their desires/requirements, so they need to remain somewhat flexible.  He said visually, they 

can effectively break up the rear facades and feels this will help quell some concern regarding 

the transition of the back of lot 36 and the view from Mechanicsville Rd/Thornbush Rd. 

 

Zoe W said in her opinion, none of the houses in Phase I & II really “blend in” as they are quite 

visible from Mechanicsville & Thornbush.  She said she does see the point of concern with lot 

36, and in her opinion, lowering the building itself won’t really change the view of it.  Tom M 

agreed, saying the previously approved buildings had received a lot of scrutiny due to their size 

and these new proposed buildings are in fact smaller in size. 

 

Bart F said the houses are visible because they are built on the side of a hill, but that through 

appropriate landscaping (using boulders in particular) and working the houses up the hill in a 

terraced way, they can be blended into a cohesive design. 

 

Greg W asked about landscaping plans in relation to the north side of lot 36.  Bart F said the 

landscape plans for that area remain as is, with augmenting at the corner of the lot & 

Thornbush Rd frontage with evergreens.  Carrie F said the conclusion quotes the originally 

approved landscaping and that she is happy to continue that approval.  The board discussed the 

variety of evergreens to be planted (from a selection of 4 varieties) and in the end decided to 

leave that decision up to the landscaper. 

 

Greg W asked if it would be possible for the applicant to provide 3D data showing the view 

from the intersection of Mechanicsville/Thornbush Rd.  Bart F said yes, it would be possible to 

create, but he cautioned against it saying it would require a great deal of assumption on what 

might be built.  He said due to the wide variety of house plans, not all design options would 

look the same on the same site. Lot 36 sits 170’ from the back of the building envelope to the 

road. 

 

Bart F showed pictures of existing units to show the board architectural & landscape designs 

that help lessen the visual impact of three story homes.  Zoe W asked if the trees proposed in 

the landscape will be planted at lower elevations than the proposed homes.  Bart F said they 

will most likely be planted at the basement level. 

 

Peter E voiced some concern about the slope grade at the site.  Bart F said that through the use 

of large boulders from the site, they can terrace the site without drastically manipulating the 

landscape.  He said the highest point is at the intersection of Barberry Ln/Thistle Hill Dr.  Where 

sites 35 &36 are currently proposed is the same site that the previously approved project had 

slated to put Dogwood Terrace and there is really not a significant change in the elevation at 

that site. 

 

Dick J asked about average house size and Bart F said there are several different size options 

available to buyers.  He said the lot envelopes in Phase III are slightly larger than in Phase I & II. 

 

Tom M asked if the public had any questions.  Ali Merrit spoke saying that five of the public in 

attendance came from the existing Thistle Hill neighborhood and that among the five, they 

represented four different house styles. She said to them, this was part of the appeal of the 



Approved DRB Meeting Minutes – April 17, 2012      page 3 of 4 

neighborhood; the options and diversity of styles.  She said the large stones the applicant uses 

in landscaping work well with the lots and homes.  She approves of the new proposal, and feels 

it has much more aesthetic appeal.  

 

Martha Keenan spoke as well, saying she also feels the new proposal will look better than the 

previously approved project.   

 

Greg W said his original concerns have been assuaged and he feels the applicant should get the 

go ahead.   

 

Dick J suggested striking Condition #16 in the proposal; the board agreed. 

 

Peter E suggested some revisions to the draft decision be taken care of prior to final signing, but 

said it is not necessary to continue the public hearing on the application. 

 

Tom M made a motion to continue the hearing to May 1st and directed staff to polish up the 
draft approval.  Dennis P seconded the motion.  All approved. The motion passed 6‐0. 
 
Hinesburg Center, LLC (Tax Map # 08‐01‐06.322): Lot #43 & Lots 47/48 off Farmall Drive and 

Kailey’s Way.  Subdivision Revision, Conditional Use & Site Plan Review.  This application was 

reopened after being closed at the March 6
th
 meeting when deliberations revealed that the 

proposed revisions would require additional set back waivers that were not requested by the 

applicant and not addressed during the public hearing.  In addition, the applicant is proposing 

to remove lot lines separating three residential units along Farmall Dr.  This would collapse 

what was originally approved as three lots into a single lot containing the same dwellings. 

 

At this time Bill M excused himself from the discussion. 

 

Greg W asked the applicant about plans for landscaping and snow removal in the shared 

sidewalks between and behind proposed buildings.  Brett Grabowski (developer) said there will 

be flowerboxes for landscaping and that there will be snow removal to keep those shared 

sidewalks clear in winter. 

 

There was some discussion among the board about centering the shared sidewalks between 

buildings.  Zoe W cautioned that there might be less space available for landscaping if the 

sidewalks are centered, and that it might be beneficial to flush them to one side or the other in 

order to increase the amount of landscaping that could go in the site.  

 

Alex W asked the board to consider where they want the setback waivers to change; are they 

ok with the proposal of 2’ from the back of the building to the lot line?  Peter E cautioned the 

need for fire safety requirements to be met.  Brett G said the buildings will be built to fire code, 

taking into account their close proximity to one another.  Zoe W said she is ok with the 2’ 

setback but that elevation of the site remains a concern for her. 

 

Tom M asked if the public had any questions.  Rodman Cory spoke from the Creekside 

Association and also voiced his concerns regarding elevation of the site.  He said in his opinion, 



Approved DRB Meeting Minutes – April 17, 2012      page 4 of 4 

the height of the buildings on the site does not transition to the Creekside community at all.  He 

feels that the look, size and elevation of the project fail to consider the Creekside community in 

any way.  He also questioned the notification procedure, saying he felt frustrated at the lack of 

available information for those living in the Creekside association.  Alex W clarified the process 

and it was agreed that efforts would be made to better inform the residents of Creekside for 

future hearings. 

 

Jennifer Hunter spoke from the Creekside neighborhood as well, saying she also sees 

elevation/height as a concern.  She said it appears if development continues at the current 

filled height, eventually Creekside will become a “low spot” which would then create new 

issues beyond visual impact (i.e., runoff and drainage). 

 

Bob Blanck asked what the elevation from the proposed building to the sidewalk would be.  

Peter E consulted the elevation contours on the site plans, noting the distance to be about 4’. 

 

Discussion regarding the buildings on the site addressed the height concern. Peter E asked if the 

buildings had already been approved with the original proposal.  Alex W said no, there were no 

building plans in the original development proposal, only an artists’ rendering.  Greg W asked 

about the height of the buildings; Brett G said they are 35’.  (The average heights in Creekside 

are around 30‐32’). 

 

Tom M made a motion to continue to May 1st and asked staff to draft approval language.  Greg 
W seconded the motion.  All approved.  The motion passed 5‐0. 
 
 

Other Business: None. 
 

Tom M made a motion to adjourn the meeting.  Zoe W seconded the motion. The meeting 

adjourned at 9:25pm. 

Respectfully Submitted,  

Freeda Powers‐‐Recording Secretary 


